ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 19, 2015
9:02 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 3

Proposi ng amendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
to increase the nunber of nenbers on the judicial council;
relating to the initial ternms of new nenbers appointed to the
judicial council; and relating to the confirmation of nenbers of
the judicial council.

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 7

Supporting the construction by Anmerican Indian Veterans
Menorial, Inc., of an Al aska Native, Anerican Indian, and Native
Hawai i an veterans' nonunent in the nation's capital.

- MOVED SJR 7 OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SJR 3

SHORT TITLE: CONST. AM MEMBERSHI P OF JUDI Cl AL COUNCI L
SPONSOR('s): SENATOR(sS) KELLY

01/ 21/ 15 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/9/ 15

01/ 21/ 15 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 15 (S) STA, JUD, FIN

02/ 19/ 15 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

SENATE STA COWM TTEE -1- February 19, 2015



BILL: SJR 7
SHORT TI TLE: NATI VE AMERI CAN VETERANS MONUNMENT
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOWSKI

01/ 21/ 15 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 15 (S) STA
02/ 19/ 15 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR PETE KELLY

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SJR 3.

HEATHER SHADDUCK, St af f

Senat or Pete Kelly

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information related to SIR 3.

KALYSSA MAI LE, Staff

Senat or W el echowski

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew of SJR 7.

MARCELLO QUI NTO, Presi dent

Al aska Native Brotherhood

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SIR 7.

W LLI AM MARTI N, Past - Presi dent

Al aska Native Brot herhood

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SJIR 7.

W LLI AM SHAKELY, Commander

Sout heast Al aska Native Veterans

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SIR 7.

DAVI D STEPHEN BOVWERS, representing hinsel f

Hol | ywood, Fl orida
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SIR 7.

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 2- February 19, 2015



RI C DAVI DGE, Director

Legislative Affairs

Vi et nam Vets of Anerica

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SIR 7.

MARY BROWN, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SIR 7.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:02: 05 AM

CHAIR BILL STOLTZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:02 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Welechowski, Coghill, Huggins, and Chair
Stoltze. He said SJR 3 and SJR 7 woul d be heard.

SJR 3- CONST. AM_ MEMBERSHI P CF JUDI Cl AL COUNCI L

9:02: 52 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consi deration of SJR 3.

9:03: 24 AM

SENATOR PETE KELLY, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of SJR 3,
related that the resolution has been in process for two years
and there has been a I ot of discussion on it.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked for an explanation of the bill.

SENATOR KELLY proclainmed that there is a problemw th the Al aska
Constitution regarding the way nenbers are selected for the
Judi ci al Council. Currently, the Judicial Council selects
nom nees that are forwarded to the Governor and acts as a
gat ekeeper for the third branch of Al aska' s governnment. There
are problems in that the Constitution requires that the
selection is made with consideration for regional representation
and there are only six nmenbers on the Council. The Constitution
al so requires three of the nmenbers to be attorneys.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked how the attorneys are sel ected.
SENATOR KELLY expl ained that they are selected by the Al aska Bar
Association, not by the people, the legislature, nor the

Governor. He said the individuals on the Bar are sincere and do
their honmework, but there is no input from the public. Mbst

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 19, 2015



attorneys conme from large cities, not rural Al aska, therefore
the representation is limted.

He related that there are also three public nenbers on the

Council. Over time, only two public nenbers have conme fromrura
Al aska.

9:08:13 AM

SENATOR KELLY detailed that the other problem with the Counci
is that with a six-person Council, ties are possible, and the

tie breaker is the Chief Justice of the Al aska Suprenme Court. He
said the names are forwarded to the Governor for selection, with
nost ties going in favor of the attorneys. He called choosing to
not forward a nane on to the Governor disturbing and aggressive
gat ekeepi ng. He provi ded an exanpl e.

9:13:15 AM

SENATOR KELLY read from Vic Fischer's book regarding the
M ssouri Plan, saying that the selection process w thdraws the
control of the Judicial Branch away from the people and pl aces
it under an organized Bar. He continued to say that no state
constitution has gone so far in placing a branch of governnent
beyond the reach of Denocratic controls. He noted that the
Constitutional Convention nenbers were warned by their own
consul tants when they were examning the Mssouri Plan in order
to create a Judicial Branch. He concluded that attorneys have
created their own judicial systemand are able to control it via
tie votes being decided by the Chief Justice.

9:15:15 AM

SENATOR KELLY stated that another problem is there is no
confirmation hearing process. He termed Alaska an "elitist
state" in this matter. A third problemis that the provision in
the State Constitution regar di ng representation IS not
attainable. The Chief Justice is also put in a predicanment of
voting for the next potential Suprene Court nenber.

9:18:45 AM

SENATOR KELLY stressed that all other Boards nust go through the
confirmation process, but the Judicial Council regulates their
own organi zation. He sunmarized that SJR 3 adds three additional
public nmenbers, requires confirmation, and renoves the Suprene
Court Justice fromhaving to vote when there are ties.

9: 20: 39 AM

HEATHER SHADDUCK, Staff, Senator Pete Kelly, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, presented information related to SJR 3. She noted

SENATE STA COWM TTEE -4- February 19, 2015



on page 2, line 2, of the resolution it states that the Judici al
Council shall act by a majority vote of the quorum of at |east
seven menbers and according to the rules which it adopts. She
explained that, currently, four out of the six nenbers nake a
guorum The resolution sets the quorum at seven to allow both
attorneys and public nenbers to have a say.

CHAI R STOLTZE said he has invited nenbers of the Supreme Court
to testify.

9:23: 26 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE held SJR 3 in commttee.

SENATOR MCGUI RE j oi ned the comm ttee neeting.

9:23: 58 AM
At ease.

SJR 7- NATI VE AVERI CAN VETERANS' MONUMENT

9:24:58 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE called the neeting back to order. He announced
that SJR 7 was before the conmttee.

9:25:34 AM

SENATOR BILL W ELECHOABKI, sponsor of SJR 7, stated that the
resolution was based on an idea from the Vietnam Veterans'
Conference to hold a nation-wide effort to get an Anerican
I ndi an Veterans' Menorial in the nation's capital. He said he
sponsored a simlar resolution several years ago, but tinme ran
out. It is an effort to recognize the trenendous efforts and
| egacy of Native Anericans and Native Alaskans. He noted there
IS no cost associated wth the resol ution.

9:26:45 AM

KALYSSA MAI LE, Staff, Senator W el echowski , Al aska State
Legi sl ature, provided an overview of SJR 7. She explained that
construction of a Native Anmerican Veterans' Menorial would give
formal recognition for generations of Native veterans who have
not been recognized in the nation's capital. In 1994, the Native
American Veteran Menorial Establishnment Act allowed a nmenorial
to be built. Since then, support for a nenorial has been
growi ng, and in Decenber of 2013, an anmended version of the Act
was passed. The nmenorial will be paid for by private donations
from a variety of organizations. She concluded that this
resolution expresses support for an Anmerican Indian Veterans

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 19, 2015



Menorial, which would recognize Native Anericans who have served
inthe mlitary.

9:28: 57 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked if other states have simlar resol utions.

M5. MAILE replied that Al aska would be the first state to pass a
resolution and Florida is working on a draft of one.

SENATOR COGHI LL noted that there is an Anmerican Indian display
near the Mall in Washington, D.C. He asked if the organization
that sponsored that display is connected to the Anerican Indian
Vet erans' Menorial project.

M5. MAILE said yes. The organization has been working wth
Vi etnam Veterans' Fund for the nmenorial to be |located near the
Vi et nam Menori al

9:30: 18 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked if other states had introduced simlar
| egi sl ation.

M5S. MAI LE answered not yet.

CHAI R STOLTZE t hought there was a WANI Native Anmerican statue.
SENATOR HUGA NS said that is correct.

CHAI R STOLTZE conmented that it was inclusive of all Americans.

SENATOR HUGA NS noted that Alaska is lucky that it has veterans
in Congress. He asked if they had been contact ed.

9:31:45 AM
M5. MAILE answered that the project has all the approval it
needs to go forward and is currently in the fundraising stage.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  announced that he would be happy to
continue to work with the Congressional del egation.

9:32:34 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS noted that Senator Sullivan is in town today and
he woul d speak with himabout this effort.

CHAIR STOLTZE opined that Southeast Al aska comunities and

famlies have paid a higher price per capita related to the
armed services.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 19, 2015



9:33: 55 AM

MARCELLO QUI NTO, President, Alaska Native Brotherhood, testified
in support of SIR 7. He said he proudly served in the U S. Navy
for four years. He stated it is time that Al aska Native veterans
are recogni zed for their service in many wars.

9:36: 03 AM

WLLIAM MARTI N, Past-President, Alaska Native Brotherhood

testified in support of SIJR 7. He said they are pleased and
honored that Native Americans are being recognized for their
long history of service in the mlitary. He concluded that they
served in order to protect their famlies. He noted that their
tribal organization will be witing a resolution in support of
SJR 7. He pointed out that a nenber of the Iwo Jinma Menorial is
a Native Anerican and he shared information about the Native
Code Tal kers. He described the pride for those who served.

9:40: 48 AM

WLLI AM SHAKELY, Conmmander, Southeast Alaska Native Veterans,
testified in support of SIR 7. He said they organized in 1995 in
order to help veterans who were not receiving their benefits. He
told a story related to designing the Code Tal ker nedal. Five
Code Tal kers are from Sout heast Al aska.

9:42: 47 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE requested the nanmes of the Code Tal kers.

MR. SHAKELY said they are Mark Jacobs, Jr., Harvey Jacobs,
CGeorge Lewi s, Jeff David, and Ri chard Bean.

CHAI R STOLTZE said it would be appropriate to honor them

MR, SHAKELY thanked the legislature for its support of Native
Al aska vet erans.

9:45: 06 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE noted fornmer Representative Bill Thomas is very
supportive of recognizing veterans.

9:45:41 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS shared war stories about Native Al askans serving
their country with pride.

9:48: 31 AM

MR. SHAKELY told a story about a soldier from Hoonah who becane
a sniper in WNI.

SENATE STA COWM TTEE -7- February 19, 2015



9:49: 09 AM

DAVI D STEPHEN BOVWERS, representing hinself, testified in support
of SJR 7. He related that he is a Sem nole Indian and he works
for the tribe. He said he has been working on this project since
2010. He related how the initiative began. In 2013, Congress
approved a statue to be placed outside the National Miseum of
the Anmerican Indian and the fundraising would be done by the
museum He described his efforts to gather information, pronote,
and fund the education center to be | ocated underground.

9:58: 53 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE t hanked M. Bowers.

SENATOR HUGGAE NS t hanked M. Bowers.

10: 00: 48 AM

RIC DAVIDGE, Director, Legislative Affairs, Vietnam Vets of
Anerica, testified in support of SIJR 7. He recalled when he
worked as the National Chair of Governnment Affairs for Vietnam
Veterans of Anerica. The proposal was brought up as a concern
for the lack of representation of Native veterans. Since then,
there has been a lot of work done. He discovered that American
Natives were over-represented in war conflicts wth no
recognition of that service. He said he is delighted to support
SJIR 7.

10: 02: 52 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE t hanked M. Davi dge.

10: 03: 29 AM

MARY BROWN, representing herself, testified in support of SJR 7.
She noted she is Tlingit and daughter of a Coast Guard nenber,
sister of a Marine, and the proud nother of a son who served in
Desert Storm She said she feels strongly about sharing her
feelings regarding this resolution. She shared her experience as
a nmother of one who served and testified in favor of this
nmonument . She said she would |ike to see a nonunent in Al aska.

CHAI R STOLTZE cl osed public testinony.

10: 09: 14 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI noved to report SJR 7 from conmmittee with
i ndi vi dual recommendations and attached zero fiscal note. There
bei ng no objection, it was so ordered.

10: 09: 42 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 19, 2015



There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair Stoltze adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee hearing at 10:09 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 19, 2015



